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Creating a Great Customer Experience 
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Making our procurement process as accessible and friendly as possible is a priority for 
the City of Tulsa. We want your bidding experience to be clear, efficient, and 
welcoming, no matter what service or product your firm provides.

We especially welcome businesses that are new to contracting with the 
City – we’re so glad you’re here!



Responding to RFPs 101 will cover…
• WHAT: an overview of the Request for Proposal (RFP) form’s 

structure, content, and purpose. This does not focus on the 
Invitation for Bid (IFB).

• HOW: guidelines for submitting RFP responses to the City 
Clerk’s office correctly. 

• HOW: 5 tips for writing strong and compelling RFP responses 
that best highlight your firm’s strengths.

GOAL: To learn how to respond to RFPs accurately and effectively, such that you 
present RFP responses that best highlight your firm’s strengths.
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Housekeeping
• Have a question? Put it in the chat! We’ll save the last 15~ 

minutes to address your questions and comments. I’ll 
also address questions in the chat over breaks during the 
“quiz” sections of the training. 

• Stay muted unless speaking.

• This session will be recorded for future reference and 
posted on Tulsa’s “Selling to the City” website.
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https://www.cityoftulsa.org/government/departments/finance/selling-to-the-city/current-bid-opportunities/


What is an RFP?
• A problem to solve: An RFP is the document 

the City uses to promote an opportunity for a 
vendor to help the City address a particular 
need or achieve a certain goal. The RFP will 
describe what they expect from a vendor and 
how their performance will be measured.

• A job description: The RFP will also lay out 
how candidates’ responses will be evaluated 
based on a set of criteria. Unlike IFBs, RFPs 
are primarily evaluated on qualitative 
factors. 

• An opportunity for innovation: Upon 
reading the RFP, you can reach out to your 
buyer with questions and comments regarding 
the specifications and what product or service 
best suits the City’s needs. 5

RFP Overview



But what does an RFP typically look like? 
What’s the purpose of each section?



Cover Page
Right away you know:
• What the City wants
• NIGP commodity codes 

(which are key to vendor 
registration!)

The rest of the page tells 
you:
• Key dates: pre-proposal 

conference, question 
deadline, proposal 
submission

• Assigned buyer

RFP Overview

7



Sections I-III: Overview and Background

These sections tell you:

• What problem the City is trying to 
solve

• Why the City needs this service to 
solve the problem

• What context and consideration a 
vendor needs to know when 
addressing this problem

RFP Overview
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Sections IV-V: Scope of Work and Deliverables

These sections tell you:

• What activities, reports, and/or 
products the City expects to be 
completed during this contract

• What requirements the City 
expects the vendor to meet

• Why those activities and 
requirements are crucial to the 
RFP’s goals and outcomes

RFP Overview
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Section VI: Performance Metrics and 
Contract Management
This section tells you:

• How the City will be tracking 
vendor performance and 
progress towards outcomes

• Who will collect those metrics 
and how often

• How the City will engage with 
the vendor during the contract

RFP Overview

An RFP is NOT the contract – the final performance metrics will ultimately be 
determined by the chosen vendor and the City collectively. 
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Section VIII: Response Form Questions 
This section describes:

• What written content or 
responses you need to provide in 
order to demonstrate your 
qualifications

• What the City will use to 
determine your “score” on various 
evaluation criteria to determine 
the strongest RFP response

RFP Overview

Our goal is to keep things simple and accessible: all respondents answer the same 
questions in the same manner to share their qualifications and strengths.
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Section IX: Evaluation Criteria
This section discusses:
• How responses are evaluated: The 

RFP will list various categories, each 
with a point value, and a basic 
description of what a top score looks 
like. Typically points add up to 100.

• Again, RFPs are primarily evaluated 
on qualitative factors, not just price. 
These can include:
 Qualifications and experience
 Service delivery
 Staff capacity and training
 Familiarity with project context or 

recipients
 Past performance

RFP Overview
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Quiz Time!
Which of these statements is TRUE?
A. There is NO part of the RFP explicitly dedicated to the RFP’s 

goals and the context surrounding them. 
B. RFPs are primarily evaluated on qualitative factors, such as 

past performance and staff capacity. 
C. Performance metrics are the methods the City will use to 

evaluate RFP responses.
D. You can choose to “opt out” of certain evaluation criteria. RFP 

responses are each evaluated on a different set of criteria.



So how do I respond to an RFP 
correctly? How and what do I need to 

submit?
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What should ALWAYS be in my RFP response?
RFP Response  Submission

• Cover letter
• Respondent information sheet
• Proposal response form/written proposal 

narrative
• Price summary sheet
• Affidavit (notarized and signed!)
• Any additional information (recommendations, 

materials) required by the RFP.

Use the included bidder checklist as your guide. 
EVERY RFP response requires: 

Supplementary materials vary greatly between RFPs. Make sure to 
read the checklist included in your RFP. 
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How should I submit my RFP response?
RFP Response Submission

You MUST mail or submit your hard copy RFP response to the following 
address:

Office of the City Clerk – City of Tulsa
175 E. 2ND St., Suite 260
Tulsa, OK 74103 
RFP responses must be received no later than 5:00pm 
CST on the bid submission date listed on the first page 
of the RFP.

• Occasionally the City will also ask that you also send a thumb drive (2 or more) 
and/or email a digital copy to a specific email address.



17

How should I submit my RFP response?
RFP Response Submission

Use the included RFP packet label to ensure the address is correct and that you 
have the right information.

Remember to write 
the RFP number 
and description on 
your label.

Make sure this is 
your firm’s legal 
name.



Quiz Time!
Which of the following is FALSE?

A. Your packing label should include the RFP #.
B. When mailing your RFP response, the packet should be directed to 

the City Clerk’s office, NOT the programmatic department 
overseeing the RFP.

C. You can fax or email your RFP response to the City Clerk’s office.
D. The affidavit needs to be notarized and signed by an authorized 

agent.



5 Most Common Errors Firms Make 
in RFP Responses



1. Not Including the Right Documents
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5 Most Common Errors

Make sure to read the respondent checklist carefully: include in your RFP 
response ALL the materials requested. No more, no less. If all the required 
documents are not included, you will be considered non-responsive.

You also don’t get any extra 
points for attaching material that 
was not asked for! Only include 
materials listed on this checklist!



2. Not Customizing Your Response to the City of 
Tulsa’s Needs
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5 Most Common Errors

Purchasing staff can see a “copy-paste” job from a mile away. Don’t recycle, 
customize! Make sure that your RFP response genuinely responds to the 
questions asked and demonstrates how your firm can meet Tulsa’s needs, not 
any client’s. Check that you’ve addressed all evaluation criteria.



3. Sharing Overly Lengthy Responses to See 
“What Sticks”
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5 Most Common Errors

Longer responses do not mean better responses! We 
like brevity. Focus on the questions being asked. If 
150 words answer the question, then a 1000-word 
responses only make it harder for City of Tulsa to 
read and review your proposal in a timely manner.



4. Not Featuring Specific Examples in Your 
Response
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5 Most Common Errors

One of the best ways to demonstrate your value-add as a vendor is to share 
specific examples of how your services address our needs. 

Don’t rely on generic descriptions 
and vague promises! Answer the 
RFP response questions using 
examples of past projects or 
descriptions of approaches unique 
to your firm.



5. Forgetting to Review Before Submission
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5 Most Common Errors

You’d be surprised to see how 
many error-filled RFPs the City of 
Tulsa receives. Make sure to:

• Do a proper spell check. 
• Review formatting and 

grammar. 
• Remove Track Changes and 

Google Doc comments. 

Ask colleagues to review your 
RFP response and confirm that 
you included all the necessary 
materials AND demonstrate that 
you meet the specifications.



Quiz Time!

What are key things to review before submitting your RFP?

A. Whether your responses answer the questions asked in the 
RFP and address Tulsa’s needs

B. Spelling and grammar
C. Whether or not you included the right attachments
D. You should review all these components before submitting!



How can I hear about upcoming RFPs?

26

• Complete online registration – including 
W9 and EFT forms.

• You’ll then receive email notifications 
about bid opportunities based on what 
commodity codes your firm selects.

• Having trouble with bid registration? 
Email Jina Djahedian at 
jdjahedian@cityoftulsa.org

Register online!

https://www.cityoftulsa.org/government/departments/finance/selling-to-the-city/register-as-a-vendor/

https://survey123.arcgis.com/share/0df171c77c824d71b1674ecaf1da369f
mailto:jdjahedian@cityoftulsa.org
https://www.cityoftulsa.org/government/departments/finance/selling-to-the-city/register-as-a-vendor/


Questions? Comments?
Feel free to email Steve Johnson (smjohnson@cityoftulsa.org), Shelley Crayton 

(scrayton@cityoftulsa.org), or purchasing@cityoftulsa.org.

Thanks!

mailto:smjohnson@cityoftulsa.org
mailto:scrayton@cityoftulsa.org
mailto:purchasing@cityoftulsa.org
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